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Attorneys for Plaintiff and
Proposed Class Counsel

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

KRISTEN SCHERTZERon behalf of Case No.
herself and allbthers similarly situated,
CLASS ACTION
Plaintiff, COMPLAINT
VS. 1. 9LRODWLR Rl &DOLI
&RPSHWLWLRQ /DZV

BARNEYS NEWYORK, INC.,a
DelawareCorporation and DOES 150,
inclusive,

Defendant

California Business & Professions
Code Sections 1720@&t seq.

2. 9LRODWLR RIF&d42 O L |
Advertising /D Z )8/
California Business & Professions

Code Sections 1750@t seq.

3. Violations of California Consumer

Legal Remedies Act 3&/5%"
Code 8 1750et seq.
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Plaintiff Kristen Schertzebrings this action on behalf dferselfand all others
similarly situated against DefendaBARNEYS NEW YORK, INC Befendant or
BARNEYS"), and states:

l. NATURE OF ACTION

1. 3] HYHU\RQH LV JHWWLQJ D GHDO ! THhédasy
action targets% D U QuHAlawfljl, unfair, and fraudulent business practice of adverti
fictitious prices and correspding phantom discountsn merchandise solid its retail
outlet storesBarneys Warehous&his practice of false reference pricing occurs whg
retailer fabricates a fake regular, original, and/or former reference price, and then
DQ LWHP IRU VDOH DW D GHHS 3GLVFRXQWHG" S
misleads consumersto believing they are receiving a good deal and induces then
making a purchase. Retailers drastically benefit from employing a false reference
scheme and experience increased sales.

2.  The California legislaturand federal regulationgrohibit this misleading
practice. The law recognizes the reality that consumers often purchase merc
PDUNHWHG DV EHLQJ 3RQ VDOH" SXUHO\ EHFDXV

pass up. Accordingly, retailensicluding Defendantave an incenteto lie to customers

and advertise false sales. The resulting harmistangill& H EDUJDLQ KXQ
about the product she purchased is that it has a higher perceived value and she
have purchased the product but for the false savings.

3.  The net effect of the practice is that the market value of the falsely adve
product is artificially inflated because the product is never subjected to true market
absent the communication of inflated value made by the false discountingxdrople:

LV D FRQVXPHU PRUH OLNHO\ WR SXUFKDVH D MD
price of $1,000.00; or are they more likely to purchase a $100.00 jacket, advertisq

! David Streitfeld, WV 'LVFRXQWHG EXW LV LW D 'HDO", +
New York Times, https://www.nytimes.com/2016/03/06/technologydiscounteebut-is-
gba}[gealhowl|st—pr|ceslost—the|r—meamng.html, (March 6, 2016), last accessed April
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WUXH SULFH RI " 21 FRXUVH WKHO0GJ.000avidHth
purported 90% discount will dramatically impact consumer behavior and result in

sales, which permits the retailer to recoup a higher market price for the jacket tha

b H
mo
n if t

jacket were advertised legally, at its true market piite. delta between the true market

price ofthe product and the pria which the retailers able to sell the produce utilizin
LWV IDOVH GLVFRXQWLQJ VFKHPH DUH WKH FRQ)

4, Barneysutilizes a false and misleading reference price in the etiagk and

selling of merchandise sold its retail outlet storedBarneysadvertises its merchandis

for saleby attaching a price tag to the item that sets forth a ficstreference priceor
regular price The reference price appears avavV UL NHW KU R X J K575R4]
followed by the discounted price at which the item is being offered for skaleH89300.
See e.gExhibit A.

5. However, thereference prices total fiction. The merchandisesold at
Barneys outlet stores isever dfered for sale, nolactually sold,at the representec
reference priceThereference pricés used exclusivelas a benchmark from which th
IDOVH GLVFRXQW DQG FRUUHYV SR D G GEnNE#EHA I effe

of tricking consumers into believing they are getting a significant deal by purch

g
/ X

I
e
Lt L

asin

merchandise at a steep discount, when in reality, consumers are paying for merghan

at its regular retail price.

6. The advertised discounts dretitious because theeference priceloesnot

represent dona fideprice at whichBarneyspreviously sold a substantial quantity of the

merchandise for a reasonable period of time as required by the Federal Trade Commis:

3)7&° , Q D G G Ipiaskemagdefareicel pkickas not the prevailing market retail

price within the three months immediately preceding the publication of the advertise

former reference priceas required by California lavkurther, upon information an
belief, Barneygproduc WV WKDW DUH LGHQWLILHG ZLWK 3Z

were never sold in a Barneys retail store and were made exclusively for B

d
KL

AlMne

Warehouse. The deception is magnified for those products, because the representatic

2
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the false referencprice leads consumers to believe they are purchasing a prod
substantially higher quality than the products sold in the outlet and that the
purchasing a product that was previously offered for sale at a Barneys retaitatone
significantly higher, reference price.

7.  Through its false and misleading marketing, advertising, and pricing scl
Barneys violated and continues to violate California and federal law prohib
advertising goods for sale as discounted from former prices thalsgedad prohibiting
misleading statements about the existence and amount of price reductions. Spec
Barneysviolated and continues to violat& D O L | Ruof@ilddfpetition LawBusiness
& Professions Code 88 1720&t,seq W KH 38 &/D O L | RAdIgeLAdVEXising Law
Business & Professions Code 88 17560seq WKH 3)$/° WKH &DOL
Legal Remedies Act, California Civil Code 88 17%@,seq WKH A&/ &nd the

JHGHUDO 7UDGH &RPPLVVLRQ $FWXQ®)IDLY) RUKGHK
SUDFWLFHV LQ RU DIIHFWLQJ)ANR brd ifaldd-adlvertiserBer@kas:

U.S.C. 852(a).

8. Plaintiff bringsthis action on behalf of hersedhd other similarly situate
consumers who have purchase@ or moeitems of clothing, shoes, accessories, jewe
PDNHXS FRORJQH SHUIXPH EHGGLQJ KRPH JRJ
storethat were deceptively represented as discounted from false fogfeegnce price
in order to halt the disseminatiof this false misleading, and deceptive pricisgheme,
to correct the false and misleading perception it has created in the minds of cong
and obtain redredsr those who have purchased merchandise tainted byébegptive
pricing scheme Plaintif seeksto obtain damages, restitution, and other appropriate |
in the amount by whictBarneyswas unjustly enriched as a result it sales of
merchandise offered a false discount.

9. J)LEQDOO\ 3ODLQWLII VHHNYV UHD VR Qforaa0ded®
of Civil Procedure§ 1021.5, as this lawsuit seeks the enforcement of an important
affecting the public interest and satisfies the statutory requirements for an aw

3
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DWWRUQH\VYT IHHV
. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. This Court has original jurisdiction of this Action pursuant to the C
Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C 81332 (d)(2). The matter in controversy, exclus
interest and costs, exceeds the sum or val$®,000,000 and at least some member
the propose Class have a different citizenship fr@arneys

11. The Southern District of California has personal jurisdiction @emneys
becausdarneyss a corporation or other business entity authorized to conduct ang

conduct business in the State of CalifarrBarneys is registered with the Californ

ass
Ve (

s of

1 dot

a

Secretary of State to do sufficient business with sufficient minimum contacts in Californi

and/or otherwisetentionally avails itself of the California market throutghpromotion,
sales, distribution, angharketing within this State to render the exercise of jurisdictio
this Court permissible.

12. Venue is proper undeé?8 U.S.C.8 1391 (b)(2)becauseBarneystransactg
substantial business in this District. A substantial part of the events giving r
30DLQWLIIfY FODLPV DURVH KHUH

. PARTIES
Plaintiff

13. Kristen Schertzeresides inSan Diego California. Plaintiff, in reliance on
% D U (fadsevatid deceptivprice tagspurchasedwo garments at Barneys Warehot
in Carlsbad, California on October 18, 2018. Ms. Schertzer purchased a Hoode
6KHUSD .QLW 6FDUI ZLWK )ULQJHV 3+RRGHG 6FD

N by

se

ISe

d F¢
Ul

6OHDYH 6ZHDWHU 3&DPR &UHZ" 6 K&hdrobSeRediihe @ridey K

tag represented i@ference price of $260.00 which was electronically crossed ou
replaced with a $129.00 price; a purported 50% saviiBigealso examined the Cam
Crew and observed the price tag represented a referencegbrig®/5.00which was
electronically crossed out and replaced wit289.00 price; nearly 380% savingsAfter
observing the price tags on the items and the accompanying signage, Ms. S(
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believed that she was receiving a significant discount otmtbetems she had chose
Because she liked both items and felt that the discounted price would likely not la
that she was getting a significant bargairttemerdandise, she proceeded to the regi
and purchased them. She paid a total of $4b06rdher Visa Debit Card ending in 266

14. However, neither of these products were ever offered for sale at the ref
SULFH OLVWHG RQ WKH SULFH WDJV DQG FHUWDL
purchase. Plaintiff was damaged in herlpe KDVHYV EHFDXVH 'HIHQ

price discounting scheme inflated the true market value of the items she purg

Plaintiff is susceptible to this reoccurring harm because she cannot be certain that

has corrected this deceptive prgischeme and she desires to shop at Barneys Ware

in the future. Plaintiff does not have the resources on her own to determine w

Defendant is complying with California and Federal law with respect to its retail pi
practices.

Defendant

15. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon such information and Q

allegesDefendanBarneyss aDelawareCorporation with itgrincipal executive offices

in New York, New York Barneysoperate8 DUQH\TV :DUHKRXVH s
well asbarneyswarehouse.conebsite, andadvertisesmarkets, distributes, and/or se
clothing and fashion accessoriaCalifornia and throughout the United States.

16. Plaintiff does not known the true names or capacities of the persd
entities sued herein as DOES$AQ, inclusive, and therefore sues such Defendants by
fictitious names. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon such information and
alleges, that each of the DOE Defendants is in some manner legally responsible
damages suffered by Plaintiff and the Class members as alleged herein. Plain
amend this Complaint to set forth the true names and capacities of these Defehdar
they have been ascertained, along with appropriate charging allegations, as

necessary.
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IV. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

The Fraudulent Sale Discounting Scheme

17. BarneysWarehousés owned and operated by Barn®&ew York and offerg
%DUQH\V 1HZ <RUNYV GHVLJQHU IDVKLRQV EXW
Warehouse offers designer products from Versace, Melillo, Ralph Lauren,
McCartney, and many otherdhe company directly markets its merchandise
consumers in the State of California vta retail Warehouse storascluding its price

tags its online ads and-commerce websiteMyvw.barneyswarehousmsn).

18. Barneysengages in a scheme to defraud its customers by perpe
discounting merchandismld in its retail outlet storeBarneysconsistently advertisele
merchandise solth its retail outlet storeBy attaching a price tag to the item witliadse
reference pricanda corresponding sale price immediatbbneath the reference prig
7KH UHIHUHQFH SULFH LV SULQWHG LQ 3VWULNHMW
reference price is a former price of the item that is now being offered at a subg
discount. The reference price&eonveys to the @tomer the purported regular prioe
former priceof the item. The salpriceconveys to the customer a deeply discounted |
at which the item is sently being offered for sal8ee e.g., Exhibit A.

19. However, at no time are the produet®er offered for sale at theeference
price. Thereference prices merely a false reference price, whiBarneysutilizes to
deceptively manufacture a deeply discounted sale prickhe merchandise sothline
and at Barneys Warehouse retail stahesng the Clas period.

20. This practice is not accidentdRather, this practice is a fraudulent sche
intended to deceive consumers into: 1) making purchases they otherwise would n
made; and/or 2) paying substantially more for merchandise consumers believg
heavily discounted and thus, worth morarthts actual value.

21. Retailers, includinddarneys understand that consumers are suscepblde
good bargain, and therefoarneyshas a substantial interest in lying in order to gene
VDOHV $ &R privéef dtiginal market pricenaters to consumers becau

6
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it serves as a baseline upon which consun@iSUFHLYH D S UIR BiX €28,
Barneyshas markedhe merchandise with an original or regular price which convey
consumers, includinlyls. Schertzer W KH S U R Gaxdrthéepresige tha/ dvnersh
Rl WKH SURGX6FHMH FR Q RINM\R/V™ Y, 718RACO 1098 KLRABHRCir. 2013)
(citing Dhruv Grewal & Larry D. Compeau, Comparative Price Advertising: Informg
RU '"HFHSWLYH" y& Mkt B2553®iagM992) 3%\ FUHDWLQJ
of savings, the presendel D KLJKHU UHIHUHQFH SULFH HQI
DQG ZLOOLQJQHVV WRd. BiX36 WKHD B B RUBXEHNCcate that &
GLVFRXQW VL]H LQFUHDVHV FRQVXPHUVY SHUFH
SURGXFW LQFUHDVH ZKLOH WKHLU LQWHQWLRQ

22. % D U QoHce\advertising uniformly includeboth thefalse reference pric
which is crossed out and the actual sale price immediately beneath the reference
nearly all items sold at Barneys Warehouse retail stdtes.uniform scheme intends
and does provide misinformation to the customer. Thgnfarmation communicates {
consumers, includmKristen Schertzéat theproducts solét BarneysNVarehousdave
a greater value than the advertised discounted price.

23. $V WKH 1LQWK &LUFXLW UHFRJQL]HV 3>

IV

s to

P

ative
D Q
KD
S

SW
W R
e

price

0]

P

HOQRUPDOYVIUDEHLEY QW WR PDQ\ MRyQY XiRIstprdadicQabilK |

Z R X O GSde Hlinojos718 F.3d at 1106.
3ODLOWLIITYY ,QYHVWLJDWLRQ
24, 30DLQWLIITV L Garreysiaed&dVihbiRem&dhandise solat

Barneys Warehouses priced uniformly.That is, the merchandise soldt Barneys

Warehousdears a pricéag with a falseeference pricand substantially discountsdle
price SULQWHG GLUHFWO\ EHQHDWK W RB D EQVRsijaihG
confirmed that theroducts MsSchertzeipurchased wrepriced with a falseeference
price and corresponding discounted price in thed8§ period immediately precedir]
30D L Qinchasd V

25. Plaintifl 1V F R X@stigaiidh cataloged the pricing practidesVv. % D

5
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Warehouse in San Diego County, including the store located at the Carlsbad Pi

emi

2XWOHWYV 3DVHR 'HO 1RUWH &DUOYV EDrGevé&
monthsSULRU WR 0V 6 FKH Uh faisedfarers X juieah® soHaspondin

OL

discount price scheme was both uniform and identical on almost all of the merchandi

sold in store at Barneys Warehous&he fraudulent pricescheme applies to

merchandise offered on saeBarneys Warehousmcluding themerchandise purchase

by Ms. Shertzeron October 18, 2018.
Plaintiff and the Class are Injured by % D U QBete¥iive Pricing Scheme
26. Thereference price listed and advertised dhe products solat Barneys

Warehouseare fake reference prices, utilized only to perpetiat® U (fake\diScount
scheme.

27. Barneysknows that its comparative price advertising is false, decef
misleading, and unlawful under California and federal law.

28. Barneysfraudulently concealed from and intentionally failed to disclos
Plaintiff and other mefvers of the Class the truth about its advertised discount price
former reference prices.

29. Atall relevant timesBarneyshas been under atio Plaintiff and the Clas
to disclose the truth about its false discounts.

30. Plaintiff relied upon % D U QaHifisdly inflated reference priceand false
discounts when purchasirger productdrom Barneys Warehousélaintiff would not

have made such purchase but férD U Qépkés&ntations regarding the fatséerence

I
2d

tive

e to

S ar

price and the fictitious sales priad the merchandise. Plaintiff may in the future shop at

Barneys Warehouse

31. Plaintiff and the Class reasonably and justifiabtted and relied on the

substantial price differences ttarneysadvertised, and made purchases believing

that

they were redeing a substantial discount on an item of greater value than it actually wa

Plaintiff, like other Class members, was lured in, relied on, and was damaged
deceptive pricing scheme tHaarneyscarried out.

8
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32. Barneys intentionally concealed and fad to disclose material fac

IS

regarding the truth about false former price advertising in order to provoke Plaintiff ar

the Class to purchase merchandimsis retail outlet store
V. CLASS ALLEGATIONS
33. Plaintiff bringsthis action on behalf of herselhd all other similarly situate
Class members pursuant to Rule 23(a), (b)(2) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules ¢
Procedure and seeks certification of the following Class agaarseysfor violations of
California state laws:

All persons who, witm the State of California, frorrebruary 14, 2015
WKURXJK WKH SUHVHQWwhWpidhad&dOfiowBarndyd U L R
Warehouse one or more products from Barneys Warelait@sise discounts

from the advertisedeference priceand who have not receivedrafund or
credit for their purchase(s).

Excluded from the Class aBarneys as well as its officers, employees, agents

affiliates, and any judge who presides over this action, as well as all past and

employees, officers and directorsRdirngss. Plaintiff reserves the right to expand, limit,

modify, or amend this class definition, including the addition of one or more subclas
connection withher motion for class certification, or at any other time, based upter,
alia, changing ciramstances and/or new facts obtained during discovery.

34. Numerosity Theclassmembers are so numerous that joinder of all mem
is impracticable. Plaintiff is informed and believes that the proposed Class con
hundreds of thousands of individuals who have been damagéd byU Qcendvidt as
alleged herein. The precise number of Classirerds unknown to Plaintiff.

35. Existence and Predominanagf Common Questions of Law and FacThis
action involves common questions of law and fact, which predominate over any qu
affecting individual Class members. These common legal and factual questions i

but are not limited to, the following:

a.  Whether, during the Class Perid8larneysused falsaeference price

9
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labels and falselydwvertised price discounts groductsit sold in its
retail outletstores

b.  Whether, during the Class Period, ttederence price advertised by
Barneyswere the prevailing market prices for theductsduring the
three months period preceding the dissemination and/or publicati

the advertised former prices;

T~

on c

C. Whether % D U QaHégeéd conduct constitutes violations of the laws

assertep

d.  Whether Barneys engaged in unfair, unlawful and/or fraudulent

business practices under the laws assgrted
e. WhetherBarneysengaged in false or misleading advertising;
f. Whether Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to damages 4
restitution and the proper measufetat loss; and
g. Whether an injunction is necessary to pre\Bantneysfrom continuing
to use false, misleading or illegal price comparison.
36. Typicality 30ODLQWLIIJV FODLPV DUH @AShdnib@s

becausenter alia, all Class members have been deceived (or were likely to be dec

And/

R

pive

by % D U (JaliseVafid deceptive price advertising scheme, as alleged herein. Plaintiff

advancing the same claims anddketheories on behalf of hersalfid allClass members.

37. Adequacy. Plaintiff will fairly and adequatelyprotect the interests of th
Class members Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in complex consumer
action litigation, and Plaintiff intends to prosecute this action vigorously. Plaintiff h
artagonistic or adverse interest to those of the Class.

38. Superiority. The nature of this action and the nature of laws availab
Plaintiff and theClass make the use of the class action format a particularly efficien
appropria¢ procedure to afforcelief to her and the @Gass for the wrongs allegedThe
damages or other financial detriment suffered by individual Class members is rel
modesttompared to the burden and expense that woudtitadled by individual litigatiorn

1C
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of their claims againdBarneys It would thus be virtually impossible for Plaintiff an
Class members, on an individual basis, to obtain effective redress for the wrongs
them. Absent the class action, Class members and the general public wotolikeln
recover, or would not likely have the chance to recover, damages or restitutio
Barneyswill be permitted to retain the proceeds of its fraudulent and deceptive mis(
39. All Class members, includin@laintiff, were exposed to one or moré
%DUQMHAVYHSUHVHQWDWLRQV RU RPLVVLRQ Vm&tketr
advertised prices were ifact bona fide Due to the scope and exterit % D U Q
FRQVLVWHQW IDOVH 3GLVFRXQW " SULFH DG Yiohy
campaign to California consumerst can be reasonably inferred that sy
misrepresentations or omissions of material fact were uniformly made to all memi
the Class. In addition, it can be reasonably presunachthClass members, includir
Plainiff , affirmatively acted in response to the representations contairfédinJ) Qatse\
adwertising scheme wheheypurchasedheir products from Barneys Warehouse.
40. Barneyskeeps extensive computerized records of its customers thr
inter alia, customer loyalty programendgeneral marketingrograms. Barneylas one
or more databases through which a significant majority of Class members m
identified and ascertained, and it maintains contact information, including email ang
addresseshtough which notice of this action could be disseminated in accordancg
due process requirements.

VI. CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation RI & D O L | Brifba{p Canfpetition Law 38 &/°
California Business and Rofessions Codes 1720Q etseq.

41. Plaintiff repeats and ralleges the allegations containedeverypreceding

paragraph as if fully set forth herein.
42. The UCL definesunfair business competitionWR LQFOXGH D

XQIDLU RU IUDXGXOHQW ™ DFW RUir,SdddefptiveL &ttue DNV

PLVOHDGLQJ  DGYHUWLVLQJ &DO %XV 3URI &R

11
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43. The UCL imposes strict liability. Plaintiff need not prove tlBarneys

intentionally or negligently engaged in unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business practice

tbut only that such practices occurred.

38QIDLU” 3URQJ

44, $ EXVLQHVV DFW RU SUDFWLFH It\offéndQdrD
established public policy or ismmoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous

substantially injurious to consumers, and that unfairness is determingdidpyingthe

reasons, justifications and motives of ffracticeagainst thegravity of the harm to the

alleged victims.
45. % DU QadibWsTFRQVWLWXWH 3XQIDLU” EXVLQHN\

or

/ V

above,Barneysengaged in misleading and deceptive price comparison advertising th

represented falseeference price andcorresponding deeply discountsdleprices The
referenceprices weraothing more than fabricatgulicesleading to phantom markdown
% D U Qadts\afid practices offended an established public pofidyansparency ir
pricing, and engaged in immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous activiti
aresubstantially injurious to consumers.

46. The harm to Plaintiff and Class members outweighs the utilit§edd U Q
practices.There were reasonably available alternatives to fur#ed U Qlédithviiite
business interestther than the misleading and deibep conduct described herein.

3) UDXGXOHQW”™ 3URQJ

47. $ EXVLQHVV DFW RU SUDFWLFH LV 31UDXG(
deceive members of the consuming public.

48. % D U (uEts ¥rffl practices alleged abowoastitute fraudulent business a
or practices as they have deceived Plaintiff and are highly likely to deceive meml
the consuming public. Plaintiff relied on% D U Q Haud@ilent and deceptiv
representations regarding reference pricefor prodicts whichBarneys sells at Barney
Warehouseits retail outlet store These misrepresentations played a substantial rg
30DLQWLIIfY GHFLVLRQ WR SXUFKDVH WKRVH SU
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have purchased those products withétD U Quisrépfesentations.

49. $ EXVLQHVV DFW RU SUDFWLFH LV 3XQODZ
law or regulation.

38QODZIXO” 3URQJ

50. % D U Qaeis &l practices alleged above constitute unlawful business
or practices as they have vitdd state and federal law in connection with their decey
SULFLQJ VFKHPH 7KH )HGHUDO 7UDGH &RPPLVYV
GHFHSWLYH DFWV RU SUDFWLFHYVY LQ RU DIIHFWL(
the dissemination of grfalse advertisements. 15 U.S.C. § 52(a). Under the Federal
Commission, false former pricing schemes, similar to the ones implemenBaitsys
are described as deceptive practices that would violate the FTCA:

(a) One of the most commonly usdédrms of bargain advertising is to offer
UHGXFWLRQ IURP WKH DGYHUWLVHUYV RZQ IRIL
Is the actual, bona fide price at which the article was offered to the public on a 1
basis for a reasonably substanpatiod of time, it provides a legitimate basis for
advertising of a price comparison. Where the former price is genuine, the b
being advertised is a true one. If, on the other hand, the former price being ad\y
is not bona fide but fictiius £for example, where amrtificial , inflated price was
established for the purpose of enabling the subsequent offer of a large reduct
WKH SEDUJDLQ " EHLQJ DG )YthelpWdh¥<drGs ho¥ rdaeivingOt
unusual value he expecta.suFK D FDVH WKH SUHGXFHG ™ S
MXVW WKH VHOOHUYVY UHJXODU SULFH

(b) A former price is not necessarily fictitious merely because no sales at the
advertised price were made. The advertiser should be especially careful
however, insuch a case, that the price is one at which the product was openly
and actively offered for sale, for a reasonably substantial period of time, in the
recent, regular course of her business, honestly and in good#artt, of
course, not for the purposé establishing a fictitious higher price on which a
deceptive comparison might be based.

16 C.F.R. § 233.1(a) and (b) (emphasis added).

XC
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51. Inaddition to federal lanGalifornia law also expressly prohibits false former

pricing schemes. & D O L | REalRd. Bdy#&ttising LawBus. & Prof. Code 817501,
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)8/ H Q Wbt Gr MaBue? statements as to former pricstates:

For the purpose of thistazle the worth or value of arthing advertised is the
prevailing market price, wholesale if the offer is at wholesale, retail if the offer
Is at retail, at the time of publication of such advertisement in the locality
wherein the advertisement is published.

No price shall be advertised asformer price of any advertised thing, unless
the alleged former price was the prevailing market price as above defined
within _three_months next immediately preceding the publication of the
advertisemenbr unless the date when the alleged former pnderevail is
clearly, exactly and conspicuoudtated in the advertisement.

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17501 (emphasis added).

52. $V GHWDL O H GTHir@Cauldébdf Acth befputhe Consumer Lege
Remedies Act,Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(9 °3&/5)$ prohibits a business frof
3S>D@GYHUWLVLQJ JRRGV RU VHUYLFHV ZLWK LQW

D SURKLELWY D EXVLQHVV IURP 3>P@DNLQJ

concerning reasons for, existence of, oramounS&fLFH UHGXFWLRQV |

53. 7KH YLRODWLRQ RI DQ\ ODZ FRQVWLWXWH
the UCL.

54. As detailed herein, the acts and practices alleged were intended to
result in violations of the FTCA, the FAL, and the CLRA.

55. Barneysfpractices as set forttabove, have misled Plaintiff, the propos
Class, and the public in the past and will continue to mislead in the future. Conseq
% D U QokatNE®s constitute an unlawful, fraudulent, and unfair business practice
the meaning othe UCL.

56. % D U QuidlaXidh of the UCL, through its unlawful, unfair, and fraudulg
business practices, are ongoing and present a continuing threat that Class mem
the public will be deceived into purchasing products based on price comparis
arbitrary and inflatedeference priceand substantially discounted sale prices. These
comparisons created phantom markdowns and lead to financial damage for cor
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like Plaintiff and the Class.

57. Pursuant to the UCL, Plaintiff is entitled to preinary and permaner
injunctive relief and order Barneysto cease this unfair competition, as well
disgorgement and restitution to Plaintiff and the Class o¥al U Qév&NMEs associatg
with its unfair competition, or such portion of those revenues as the Court ma
equitable.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of California {V )DOVH $GYHUWLVLQJ /DZ
California Business & Professions Cod& 17500,et seq.

58. Plaintiff repeats and ralleges the allegations containiedeverypreceding

paragraph as if fully set forth herein.
59. Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 8§ 17500 provides

It is unlawful for an FRUSRUDWLRQ«ZLWK LQWHQW«W
SURSHUW\«WR LQGXFH WKH SXEOLF WR HQWHL
PDNH RU GLVVHPLQDWH RU FDXVH WR EH PDG
before the public in any state, in any newspaper o gthblication, or any
advertising device, or by public outcry or proclamation, or in any other manner
RU PHDQV ZKDWHYHU LQFOXGLQJ RYHU WKH
untrue or misleadingand which is known, or which by the exercise of
reasonablecdH VKRXOG EH NQRZQ WR EH XQWUXH

(Emphasis added).

60. 7KH 3LQWHQW SedtidI78Q0UdH I iBiént to dispose of propel
and not the intent to mislead the public in the disposition of such property.

61. Similarly, this section provitHVY 3QR SULFH VKDOO EH
price of any advertised thing, unless the alleged former prices was the prevailing

SULFH«ZLWKLQ WK UimhedtelmesedingQ tHeg Vpublication of the

advertisement or unless the date when thegedl former price did prevail is clearl

—
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HIDFWO\ DQG FRQVSLFXRXVO\ @anBD3IN&Reof LCpde\EKLASAL.G

62. Barneysfoutineof advertisingliscounted prices from falseference pricg,

which were never the prevailing market prices of those products and were materia
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greater than the true prevailing prices, was an unfair, untrue, and misleading pfidusq

deceptive marketing practice gave consumers the false impression thistdhetswere

regularly sold on the market for a substantially hrgpece than they actually werg;

therefore, leading to the false impression thatgiweucts solcat Barneys Warehous
were worth more than they actually were.

63. Barneysmisled consumrs by making untrue and misleading statems
and failing to disclose what required as stated in the Code alleged above.

64. As a direct and proximate result o D U Q iHis&ding and fals
advertisementsPlaintiff and Class members have suffered injuryact and have log
money. As such, Plaintiff requests that this CouderBarneysto restorehis money to
Plaintiff and all Class members, and to enj@arneysfrom continuing these unfa
practices in violation of the UCL in the futur@therwise, Plaintiff, Class membeend
the broader general publiwill be irreparably harmed and/or denied an effective
complete remedy.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
9LRODWLRQ RIC&BUNHRBRY QHDNY SHPHGLHV $F
California Civil C ode8 1750,et seq

65. Plaintiff repeats and ralleges the allegations containedeverypreceding

paragraph as if fully set forth herein.

66. This cause of action is brought pursuant taGh&A, Cal. Civ.Code § 1750
et seq Plaintiff and each member of th@oposed Gss aH 3 FRQVXPHUV ™ |
Cal. Civ.Code § 1761(d).% D U QsHI&\6ffhe merchandisen its retail outlet storéo
3ODLQWLII DQG WKH &ODVV ZHUH 3W U D QWDEOMELH
1761(9. The products purchased bylPLQWLII DQG WKH & @b \he
meaning of Cal. CivCode § 1761(a).

67. Barneysviolated and continues to violate the CLRA by engaging in
following practices proscribed by C&iv. Code § 1770(a) in transactions with Plain
and the Class which were intended to result in, and did result in, the ghkeooiine

merchandise
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a. Advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as adver
(@)(9);

b. Making false or misleading statements of fact concerning reason
existence of, or amounts of priceductions; (a)(13).

68. Pursuantto 8 1782(a) of the CLRA, Babruary 14,2019ODLQWLI |
notified Barneysin writing by certified mail of the pécular violations of § 1770 of th
CLRA and demanded that it rectify the problems associated with the actions d
above and give notice to all affected consumer%edd U Qriten/ih act.

69. If Barneysfails WR UHVSRQG WR f&il© 0 agped/ to Ireftify (De
problems associated with the actions detailed above, or fails to give notice to all g
consumersithin 30 days of the date of written notice, as proscribe®dstion1782
Plaintiff will move to amendhis/herComplaint to pursuelaims for actual, punitiveand
statutory damages, as appropriate agéasheys As to this cause of action, at this tim
Plaintiff seeks only injunctive relief.

VIl. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

70.  Wherefore, Plaintiff, on behalf dferselfand onbehalf of the other
members of the Class, requests that this Court award relief aBamstysas follows:

a. An order certifying thelassand designatingristen Schertzeas the
ClassRepresentativandher counseasClassCounsel

b. Awarding P